
IGNACIO P. GAXIOLA 

My dear � r. Canova: 
Your memo. dated yesterday. 
Very sorry this period of festivities has taken 

most of my time and, consequently, I have been unable 
to enjoy more of your company . 

. I enclose herewith a rough sketch covering the 
life of the Chief, which I will thank you to return 
to me after i t has· served your purpose. 

It is very gra.tifying to find such good friends 
of Mex1co and of the present Administration who, so 
disinterestedly, use sorne of their valuable time to 
help. I assure you that your efforts are sincerely 
appreciated by the Chief as well as your friend 

Sincerely, 

1exico City, Sept. 25;�1.-
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Revisarlo para que, si tiene algo inconveniente, se le 
hagan las observaciones del caso y si nó, dejarlo como 

está. 



) · Dear Mr. Canova: 
I read the story about the Chief and, óf 

oourse it all depends how it is going to be published, as 
for newspaper news it seems rather long. I think it will 

· , ma.ke a good magazine article, and about "narr·o,, escapes" · · 
the first the Chief had, -was wh�n he first wen t inte the.
army, when coming from Huataba.mpo with about 300 men re-
·cruited _a.mongst his own laborers and friends, unarmed,
the train in .which h� was t_ravelling was a.ttacked by the
Ya.qui india.ns.· He. and four others were the· only ones
ar.med wi th pistors, and they suoced.ded in repulsing the
atta.ok of th� Yaquis, after which the train prooeeded to
Hennoaillo where they were properly fitted with arms and
ammunition. The only man who had any previous knowledge
was Eugenio Martinez, now General of Division, the one..
(you will remembér) who headed the parade on the 27th
o f September and· the same who aocepted Villa• s surrender
and is now in command in the North. Martinez.had served 
befo re as a "pri vate" in the federal army. 

Another narrow .escape was at the battle of Trinidad 
. . the second with Villa, after the battle of Cel&ya, when he 

. was wounded by shrapnel and lost his right a:nn. 
. . 

When he 
ca.vn.e to his senses after the shock his first thought wa.s 
that he was badly wounded, that the ba.ttle was lost and that 
he would fall in the hands of Villa. With his 1.eft hand, 
he took his revolver and tried to shoot himself. The now 
General J. M. _Garza, took the weapon from his hands, and he 
(Gen. O_breg_on) was ta.ken to be given first a.id treatment 
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and from the opera.ting ta.ble continued directing the battl.e. 
This lasted forty d.ays before it was won by him, with all 
spplies cut by Villa. 

His_ disa�pearance from this City, disguised as
a breakman, when ordera had been given by Carranza to .i&k 
take him prisoner, dead or alive, is also wortby· of notice 
as it shows the wit of the man as well as his 9oolness. 

_When carranza left the Capital and Gen. Pablo 
Gonsalez entered the City with 15,000 men appointing a 
cabinet and everything except a President, Gen. Obregon 
entered Tacubaya with 3000 men, where he established himself' 
a.nd awaited the arrival of loyal troops, until the number 
reached about ten thousand enterelng into the City the day 
when Ge·n Gonzalez platk�ed to procla.im himaelf the President. 
With Obregon's offer to Congress to back up their choice 
for Provisional President after Carranza •··s death was known, 
De la Huerta was appo inted, · an d Gon-zal ez saw hi s ambi t ion s 
frustrated. So he resigned his military rank to again 
becomé a candid.ate and soon also resigned his candid.acy 
when Obregon rejected a new offer to promiae 'Gonzalez 1his 
help for the next tenn. 

I. 'P. G.



The liberty � the presa noilf enjoys in Mexico, and the magna.ni-

mous attitude of tb.e :rovernment nowards itn �)oli·tical ene.mies, who

come and go as they please, a.re the s·triking f ea.turee. of t.he Obregon

A mlnistration, because ((!Uch a ;:-.>olicy has by no means been the cuatom

in 11.lexico,. Add to these tt1e de:mocratic manner· in 1:'rl'_ich the Preai :.ent

r. infl'les ·¡¡i th the :.,eople, aJ.'ld ono gets �, .. retty sood measure of. the
inan, Alvaro Ob:regon. Who, be(;inning life a::1 &. poor boy, with very
l 1mi ted opportuni ti t?s for educatlon, has ;'rnn. hi s v.tay honorably in buai-

n esa, in his !'nili tary éa.reer, then again in the business world, and

fine.lly, to his presént high p si tion.

Alvaro Obree;on was born at "Siquisiva 11 , a 1;.rnw .. ll ra.nch on the

ba:n{s o of the I,!aya River, in the State of Sonora., on l?ebruary t8 ,.
-,- born 

1 fü3o. He was the last"of eigl:1teen children, anc when three months

old his fa.ther, Francisco Obregon, dled, leaving the family pi:-acti-

cally deeti tute. His sisters > �!aria. Cenobia and Rosa, · ga.ve hin1 prl�-

ma.ry instruction, but early in .ife found him a.n apt pupil in the i

great university of expe.ience. At the are of t_1irteen he started

out to malee hls own living, drifting from one k.ind of ·Nork to anot7ªer.

Ha.ving a. par·ticul ar bent for mechanica h� .vorked for seven years at

the sugar rnills, a.t Navole,to, Sina.J.oa. He 'then took a ::.. .... liar in the

mercantil e· business, a.nd made such a suceess oí' 1 t · that he iva.s aoon

able to buy a far-!l on the outskir•ts of the to:m of Huatabat po_ •

At 23 ha married, losing his wife four years later. Frohl this
- e ��.., wn1on a son •. duaberto, and Refue;l,�0 a. da.ughter, Yho upon the return of their father to Nogales, were put in school at tos Angeles, Califo:rnia,

and are no�v at school �� �e- �.

.. ·,,
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His success 1n business continued; an.d nhen the first poli tical 

movement started a�>;�ünst Porforio Diaz, Obre on became affiliated 

1.qi th the O ..: ,. oslng _,..,a.rty. When Dia.z · as overthro n I O regon !Vas el ected 

mayor of the tonn of Huatabampo, he being the first man to oocupy that 

position by the free vote of the people. When Pascual Orozco start-

ed his movement aga.in,st Iifadero, Obrec;on volunteered. as a ·�aderiata, 

and recrui ting a ba.tallion b.e started for Chihuahua., where O ozco was 

then operatinr�. It was rluring this cL:i.,ipaig!l that Obregon firat re-

ceived his baptism of fire. He twice met. an( defeated the Orozquistas 

V .hen the Orozco n.ovement wa suffoce,ted, O"brer�on 's req_uest to return 

to priva.te life r.;ra.c;. sranted, but, he on1y enjoyed civil life for one 

day, because juat at that time the tragic ten days movem.ent against 

Madero v,as started 1n Mexico Ci ty. Obre�on's manifiesto, dated at 

Hermosillo, MarcJj. 5, i91J, was the first .9ublic protest aga.inst this 

rebellion. He immediately startecl his campaign n.ga.inst Huer•ta, havlng 

less than 5(>0 men. Durlni).' this �!l.iJ. itary campaign. of aeventeen months 

he covered 5,000 liles, his forces ..::rowing as he went along, until 

fi:nally, when he reached ;.--exic City, the l'.'.l.iddle of Auc;u.st, 1914, the 
... 

Federal forces, ai� to number 33,000; with provisions for three 

months, surrendered to him. At this time Obregon was in command of 

35,000 raen, falrly ·,;-.¡el 1 equipped Yd th sup� l i es ca. tu red í'rom the 

enemy. 

Obregon, at the timo he took over the mili ta.ry c.orfillland of Mexico 

City, was a striking figure, well set-up, handsome, of an Irish t.7pe 

? (although he claims to be a ftUl blooded Haya), he showed himself to' ...,... 
be a. man of e;reat executi ve abili ty. He dispatched the businaas of 

his off ice pro ptl.y, listenine; to co:mplainta, peti tions, etc. ,.wi th 

gr8at care, an deciding quickly what aotion was to be taken, gave
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his ord·ers accordingly. Those who aaw him in those stirring, bus y 

da.ys, could not but admire him ., persona.J.ly ana_ of:t'icially. 
vY1., /f /,3/

When Venustiano Carranza launched. the Plan of Guadalupe,/\ <Dbr�gon

a,cknowledged Carranza as t.he First Chief of the Revolution. When 

the fighting bet een the ifilla. and. carranza forces had reached an ;t. 

a.ctüe eta e, in the spring of 1915, Obregon crune to the front and 

l ed is forces north to the vicini ty of Ce ay�, �'lhere, after more 

the..n a month 's fightlng > the Villa forces were completely routed. 

It was notan eaey victory, but one in which patiencé and determina-

tion finally won the day. It was at Trinide,d, at ·:>ractica1ly the 

end of the · fir,ht, that Obregon lost his right arm, on June 3, 1915 ,,

1t1hen he was hit by a })iece of shell. Des ite hls serious conditi.on, 

he oontinued directing t:1e batt1 e until the ViJ.l ista.s were sca.mpering, ��. pell-mell over the hills to s�t�. 
1Vhen Obregon started on his e :npaign agalnst Villa he only had 

9,900 roen, but he followe ·_ his vict.ory vd th increEtsing forces and 

routed the Villtstas wherever he encountered thew., after h� had 

administered the big drubbing he gave them at Trinidad. He waa very 

justly made a General of Di vision, the higl1.eet ran1"' in the Kexican 

Army, on July �?, 1914, when he was but 34 years of age. 

After he had succeeded in dtsperaing the Vill�sta forces Obregon 

was made Minister of i've.r and Navy, whlch post ha filled untll shortly 

�.fter the Queretaro Convention had ceased i ts labor.a, when he rasign-

ed a.nd returned to priva.te life. At thls time Obregon was a.poor man.
He ha.el to go to work at once.. He had not enr1ched h1mself as ma.y of 

the revolutionists had done, although hia opportunitias were, perhaps, 

gre ter than ao.1 other man angaged in that campaign. 

· Duri.ng his <=,cti vi ties in the revolution is pri va:te business
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a.lmost ent1rcly diaa:p ea.red, so that when he returned to gis former 

home. he found practica.lly nothing left. He then v1ent to Nogales 

whe:re he opened an office an0_ :proceeded to rea.djust his business af-

fairs. He soon hacl a good mercan tile business ur.10.er wa.y. IIe orga.ni-

zed the planters of the Sta.tes of Sonora a.nd Sin...,loa, and wa.s soon 

handling the immense cro.9 frou thoae states. exyorting i t mostly to 

the IIJni ted Sta tes. Ifr:3 1n.ade a handao. e rofl t fo:r- h:tmself and };lis 

backers, ?1hile he �Jroved. to be a e;reat benefactor t,o the people of 

the two Sta.tes in which he operated. 

After his retu:rn to Nogales a.nd gettins his business started he 

ma.rried the da.ughter of Se?íor :&"'rancisco Tapia, a.nd now has three child-

ren from thia second marriage. He is very amch d.evoted to his family, 

Two of the childr'811 by the o econd ma.rria.ge are boy�tv'lins, who a.tt:ract 
.--- a fiP'L w 

e;reat attention wherever they go. oJ..\.t"M-0 11\ J
oJ., ""Gl., z, 

In the furtheran.ce of his newly et3tabl.ished business, General 

Obregon maae severa1 t.rips through the United States, visiting Wash-

:tngton, and. fcr.:ri.ing pleasant acquatnt:mce - herever he went. He w�a 

in Washington shortly a:fter the U-ni tea. Sta tes entered the �Vorld War, 

and had an oppor t.uni ty to vri tness the speéding up of war 1 reparatlona 

on a. big sea.le. He has ma..'l'ly friends among our army officers and th,ey 

showed him a.round, thua enabling him to e;et u good id.aa .)f the aerious
work, · and the m.agni tude of í"fha. t was then on hand.. He was deeply im­

preaaeq., not only with with the war preparat,ionz, but with the vaat-

neas of the United Sta.tea, 1 ts wea.1 th and i ts power. 

General Obregon was al ways a loyal Carrunciata. He a.nd the · 

other leaders who atood w1th Carranza hadan uphill time of it, trying 

to persu�de tha Firat Ch1ef to do what they bel1eved .right. Carranza.
held strong convictions, and it waa ra.re for him to alter hie opinions
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to maet thóse of the men who su1:•rounded im. Often there was bi tter 
complaint of this, even as ear1y a.e th.e be,;inninc; of 1914, when. the 
revolutionar;r novement ha.d not ucquired much ímpetus. As Carranza and 
the move ent became stronger, he was less amennble to the suggestions 
and lea.diriss of his right hand men, and this inflexibili ty of thia 
very posi ti ve fis"Ure, finally brolre dovm the su.pporting barriers of 
friend.ship which had surrounded him . Y!'�en these feH e.way from him., 
Carranza 's po:i,er vras gone .. 

It is a truth, ·tho.. t generally speaking, grt::llt regret is fel t for 
Carranza.--regret that he ca.me to such an end--that he should have 
broue;ht diss,ster upon himself by forever tur-ning a deaf ear to the 
ac_vice of his best frien s. A.mong the revolutionary ele.ment in 
.Mexico the:re exists a deep apprecie,tlon of Carranza a.nd his wark. 

It is also true that Goner.�l Obregon ·.vas one of Carranza "s 
etaunchest su9porters, up to a compa.ratively short time befo:re the 
break oa.me. To students of t,he :11foxican situation it wa.s apparent tha.t 
such a. break v:1as i evitable. The m.en , ho had rallied around Carranza, 
and who made hlm what he was { for Carranza 'lfas no t a. mili tary man), 
would not forever. agrée to be ie;nored. '.i!t was not human. 

Perhaps Obregon, himself �vas one of the last to realize tha'. , ··1e 
parting of the ways had been reaohecL Intima.te facts relatec1 to the 
collapse of Carranza 's power pi-•ove tha.t Obregon stood by the old man. 
until, for a certainty, his doom was sealed. Obregon, beca.use of 
hia EL"'{cellent :tüli ta:ry ca1 ... eer was 1�ecognized a.a the strong man--the 
man of the ho1x;¡;-•-- and he caro.e into power throut.�h his own populari ty 
a.mong the m111tary element and the people genere.lly, al�hou.gh there 
were other candidates for the honor. 
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If mirr.�cles Jtere -�lven ere ence to .ay, it 71ould be said that 

General Obre.son• a l ifG had been saved bedause i t was orduined tha.t he 

should becor.1e Preai -ent of Mexico. His escape from de�th in many 

battles in ,'lhich he partiuipated are not ta_,en into this account, be-

ca.uoe he has �1a other remarltable clo$e , ha ves for his life� where 

h.i s esca.pe í:3.s al:nost ca.nny.

On Se t�ub .r 1 J, , e , , General Obr,_.c;on, wí th hls ,·Jtaff, left 1ex-

ico Clty 0n u spe ial train, for tho i ty of C�lihuo.hua, v her e he had 

bee;.1 invited by Gc...neral Villa., to �vitness t.1e :..estlvlties to be heli 

there on De;>te-:i-b0r 15tl"' , · 'T.Lich is the :.lexican ?ourth of July. Upon 

. rri val at Ch..!.:L.,v�hua 8-en -eral o·bregon n2.s gi ven a big; rec opti on. One 

of the features of the coI.ebPation waa &. revie·o:r of the Ville.. "troo s, 

a.nd i t is do btful if ever a .. �[e.xica.n arny 'a.c}.e n. bett -r shovring. ·r:very

a!l -:¡as d.resaed in a ne,f u.n:tform, every .1orse iiaS in fine condi tion, 

8.11.d every s m Nas bunnishecl e..n' 11reJ nte 1. a.t its best. The a.rtillery 

All of thL, -1as ::-;rep �rod, in a la.re;e :neasure, to .:nake an im.pres-

sin u�on General Obregon, because at that time the Villa and Carranza 
fa.ctions were at lo -.,gerhea.ds. "2itforts :rnre .f·hen beln ,. a e to b:ring 

about a conciliation. One of the objects of G-eneral Obree;on "'s vislt 

was to smooth thine;s over. Villa -vra:-nted sc111e e mcession made him and 

e ertain recoe;ni tion fpo;;: Carr.nru;a. Vil 1a. was, in fe.et, en ti tl ed to 

more tha.11. Cnrrn.p.za 11ms ü11 ing to co:1cec_e hi:a, anc the si t. rn,tion wae 

very tense, for tlle _fricticn for severa.l ,1.wnü1s had been ereat. 

At this t:i.Jie there were p:r .sent in Chihutt,'·w.a t-,. o of the Confide11 ... 

ti· l RepreeeI tat.lves of the t:·ashington Gov-ernmen t,. One of them was 

presenteq. t,o General Villa, for the first ti· e, during the forenoon 

of �eptember 17th, and Villa had asked that he r0tu¡on that áfte�aGon l-' 
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when he wouléL have time to 11 charla.r 11 , or have a o:ood talk. 

1'he Agent returned in tt1e afternoon, a.n. �ms sho,;n into a small 

wai ting room., ·.v11ere he aat. alone, ':..l.ntil General Villa should. conclude 

a conference · he ·.vas then holding. The t·,10 u_ curtained. r.,;}.ass doo;rs 

leading fron tne l;Jain roon into this s111n.ll ante :roora were ·oartly aj�

and. the Agent ooon dise;ovored that Vil!.a .rn.s conferring vrith Gene:ral 

Obregon. Vi;L_a .-.,as a.rr:uing thu t G-eneréü Benj amin Hill should be 'ivi th-

d.:rawn from , onora. Obr•ee;on was oppoEJed to m1ch a move. Villa inaisted 

anJ. wllen i1e s,.w; that Ooregon as adru'ant, he r:ent into on0 of his sud-

·.en a1 d. violcmt flts of anger. As Villa's voice rose in anger, the

two chriirs in which these � inen , ere sittine;, scra9ed back screetch-

in0 , in keepius with Vllla�s oaths as ho told Obregon that he would

have hiw sh0t then ano. there. '.110 - rovo t .. D.t ho .ms in earnest he shou.t-

ed an order for one of his aides, who wt1.s in the adjoining office. 

Villa 's ·. en 71�re always e;alvanized into quiclt action when he went into 

one of rr.!,e;ee, and a.a the aió.e ruched into the room Villa ord.erad the 

f irins squan to be i::n:nediately brought. 

Obreg:):n 8.:1. Villa were then waPüng u;> und do;m the room, Villa 

pounuing on a ta b1 e e. he i)a;::1s Er� i t, c,,nc. bl 1·1d wi th ra.ge. Obregon wae 

quiet, s�:;ea:ring cal:::ily t,o illa. Vllle. re-iteratei'l that, he would soon 

sho·,y Obregon that it was he who co ·ria.nded. Obrogon re:Jlied: "Of course," 

you can n.ave me shot. but that will not prove a solutioL of the pro­

blem, i t aill only a.ggravate i t. Bu.t, lf y dcath w1ll accomplish&t 

a.ny good en.el :for my country, then I shall ie lia._.;:;py�' 

In the mean.time, Villa, who was on the far si e of t�1e main room 

h�d twloe passed the glass doox•s, a.ad taach time ha t�rned. racing them, 

but the Confidentia.1 Agent -nas sitting in t1 e sn,.':1.dow an· v:a.s not seen. 
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As ViJ.,le. turned the third time the Agent arase, B .. nd Villa. se.w h1m • 

.At once his flow of abuoive language a.bated. He must ha.ve realized 

at the.t ornent t at he could not carry out hi.s intentions, because 

2-.b ve a.11 thin3s he .vished to retain the goocl will of the Washington 

Governrnent. As soon O.t3 the Aóent had acco..nLJl ishea. this ena.. he walked 

out of the hou3e, ancJ entering a C.!O.;i,Ch which wa,;¡ in Yra.i ting in front 

of the house, sat there in full sisht oí' Villa wllenoxre:c he faced the 

l.'J..r0c í'ront vrlndo�vs.jf Shortly after he ho,d. oeutcd hiz self in the 

coa.ch, oixteen :3oldiers, twe:ve a.1":n.ed .1ith euns, and four without a!'ID.S 

(tllese to re;.:10ve tl-1;;: body) arrived, on d.ouble , uiok: tLne. They ransed 

the sel ves on ei tüer side of the ·,rn.lk :Leo,cüng fro .1 the fron t. ga t.e to 

the house, and ato oc. there wai tine; orders. 1.1:he Agent rema.inea. at his 

post for or'.l.e hour rmd twent.y-five . inuten, when Genera.Is Raoul . .Madero 

an( E1.1gen.l..o Ag,uirrc BenaviCes, of Villa.' s Staff, ca;ne out w i th General 

Obregon. As t}wy ca.1e ou.t of t.he gate the Confidentíal Agent aaked 

General i'.Cade:r·o vihere t,hey were going �md he ;'fr_ s told that they ¡,rere 

ta,ting Obree.;oJ.- to iiíadero 's hot1.se. The three Gener· ls then érove away 

in Rn automobile, ,;lüle the Ae;cnt follo" ed, and upon arriva.l at Mad.ero .. l 
home, ·vent L and had a t�ü.K �1i th Obregon. 

General Obr(�, on .vas fully o::ra.re o±' the d.an¿,;srous posi tion he wa.a 

in, but he was perfectly cal:.u. When v..s1r.ed by the Agent lf there was 

anyt 1ing he coulü 'o, Obregon sQ.id : 71 N'o; I ·�o not think you can do a.ny­

thing. This ::ian I lfilla) has e-ntir•ely lont is heac., ::md he dll pro­

bably have ..:i.e :Jhot 11 • iíowever, the Agent drove baclr to Villa .. s home, 

Which he a.lao ma.de his headq ar·ters, a.nd. haá. a. talle wi th him. Villa"a 

ayes were flasL.i e; engrily ,. and he m.1s under Bl"eat exc1 teraent, · 'but the 

Agent went in r:-,..a if nothing had ¡).�ppened, atatin6 that he harl called 

7 
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at the appointed hou:r., and from the ante room could, not help but hear 

all that had transpired. He talked earnestiy to Villa, pointlng.out to 

hir,1 how dee:ply interesteq the Uni ted Sta tes \'fas in having the d1ffe:e­

ences bt1tween: Carranza and hi::nself a"'licably ar1"ane;ed so that peace 

would come to :Jexlco a.s quicl:cly as possible. IIe informed Vi;J..la that 

the Uni ted States was profoundly a..nxious that nothing should occur to 
prolong the trouble, ,?. u pointed. out to Villa that a.s Obregon was his 

lnvi ted guest, he shoulc. use all of the forces at his com.ma.ncl to shield 

Obre:;;on from danger, insteaó. of threatening him. Villa !fras. still an­

gry- ... v,ery angry, but as the tal 1.{ pr:ogressed be cal1ned down, a.nd fina:+ly 
he said he would let Obregon return to !.ff exico Cl ty, via El Paso. The 

.Agent talked further, trying to persuade Villa to per it Obree;on to re­
turn direc.t to M:exlco Ci ty, so that he could. arrl ve there in tv;o days, 

instead of it taking him weeks by the other route. A quiak eolution 

of the difficulties existing between Carranza a:nd himself was for the 
benefit of Mexico, e,nd would. be most. pleasing to the Washin3ton Gove1"1l­

ment. Villa stoo� firm on his a.etermination to send Obregon via El 
Paso. 

Earlj the ncxt norning the train was ma.d.e up, headed for El Paso, 

but, at the·. last móment, two of Villa �a right hand. .m�n, Tuii uel Diaz 

Lombardo and Dr. Miguel Sil va, whom Villa decided. to send as his. Com­

misioners to Carranza, appea1"ed at the depot. An engine was then hi toh� 

Gd on the other end of the train, and it started �outhwa.rd., Howeve:r., 

Carranza recei v:ed the news that Villa had shot Ob�e$on, and -;.;hen the 

tra:in reached. Leon, Carranza. had isaued or·ders to eut all lin.es ot 

eommuni c.a.ti.on wi th Villa. territory. Th1s enra.ged y111a who o!'dered 

the r.eturn of the Obregon t1')a1n, and the .seond morning thereaft.er the ·· 

Obregon party again app�ared in Ohlhuahua, !hey expected surely te be i7
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shot, because by thls time Villa's camp was a.�l activity, a.nd forces 

were hurriedly pre .. aring to ijlove against the Garrancista.s. In fact, 

some had ali·ea.dy started. One of tbe men then �vith Genenal Obregon 
cln 

approached tl e Confide t1a1 Agent, "as a friend ,anll:ed if he •muld do 

him a favor. When the assurance was given th::? Obregon man ha.nded ovar

45, O pesos in Mexican bank notes, ''!i th the reque::st that these be 
uim:11.«xs:x::,m."cxmc:kxl! deposi ted in the Uni ted States to the credi t of the 

<::arrafRa government, ahould tlle Obregonistas be executed by Villa. 
But Obregon waa again permitted to leave for the south. Some of 

Villa"s troop trains had a.lready gone south . . few hours before Obregons 
train left that night, General Mateo Almanza left in coillffiand of a troop 
train, and it aprears that he had verbal orders from Villa to stop 
Obregon ". train when i t overtook t!1.e slo':'rer :11oving troop train.._ and to

shoot Obre0on. But, as vms usually the case when the troops start_ed 

on a crn.m e,ien from their headquarters, there was a great deal of en-
thueiasm. and dri1u:ihg. To th.is is probab. y "ue the fact that when 

Obrep;on "s train carne up to Al:nanza "s at a small statlon, Almanza. ·nas

as. eep, &"1.d as he haC: not , entioned Villa "s secret ord.ers t.o anyone,

Obree;on "'s tre.in v:as permi t ted to pass. The next morning, wh.en Almanza 
diacovered what ha.d occurred d.uring the nie;ht h, Has both frightened

and furious. Vtlla sel dom overlooked a failu:re to carpy out his orders.

Almanza immedie.tely telegraphed V:tJ.la, and the latter at once wlred 1n-

sñructions to hi ,lil i ta.r•y corn...manders a.11 a.long the line, to stop a.:rid 

hold Obregon "s traln until Almari.za arrived. The ca.t ivas out of the

bag. There wa.s no longer any secrecy as to Villa"s intentiona against 

Obr.gon. The ViJ.liota.s have ah1ays olaimed that Villa had a...11 le jus-

tification .for giviug t�ese last orders. 
The honor of holding up thv Obregon train fell to the military 6v 
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aommander ata small station called Corralitos, a few miles north ot
Torreon. Obre.�on knew , he,t this meaut and he ctllled his Staff together 

only 
and told the:n that Villa

/',t1ad designa agaínst him., r...nd for them to leave 

the train and do _the best they could to save themselves. Genéral 

Francisco ('!errano!f. now Assistant Secretary of 1�-3,r, was t.he,0'.vi th· Obregon 

as his right l and man. 'l11'1ere were also t·10 Americana wi th Obregon, 

both newspaper.;nen., ono nQmed Byron Butch.er· a.11 -" the other 0!r1ght. 

Every one of them e ectoc. to remuin 'i7Í th Obre�on .md stanc1 by him to 

the last.
But Obregon's- star vras ntill in the ascen_"�ncy. Gener9,l fütoul 

lviaclero and Crenera1 Isabel Pobles were then at Torreon, a.nd when the 

tr in d.ispatcher there inforr.ied them of the order Tilla had flashed 

a on\ the li e, they immediately becrune greatly exercised, because 

they realized t: at i t rnuld seriously urt ti:1eir caune if Obree;on met 

his cea.th in this manner. They at once telegraphed the mili ta.ry com"". 

mander a.t CorraJ.itos to let Obregon 's train proceed bo 'I'orreon. 'J.1he 

local oommand.er d.emurr·ed, but these Gonerals who wer·e ttar a.bov.e him, 

re&petecl the ord.er and assured ':r·üm that they would be responsible to 

Villa. As the smol{e of Almanza 'e traln ·:ms s e�n in the cti..t .,not mo:r>e 

tha.n a mil e from the l i tt· e stat:lon ,. Obregon "s train slipped southward 

toward 'rorreo:n and sa.fety. Upon a.rri val a,t this place i t :rras hmrri,ed 

south and once ae;ain Obregon v,as ea.ved., a.nct 11 ved to soe the de.y whan 

he, in oo.,_ -10 .. r1d of troo.pa met troops under the conoand of Villa, and 

routed 11.im. 

Experiences of this natur� tend to exercise the mentali ty to, a 

depth and ale:r>tnoss never understaod by those who have not had 'Such 

aclven·tures, a,..nd ln a fe·,,., short hours impa:i."ts an underste..nding and 

wisgom whicll yea.rs of ,).ge 1ay never bring t,o :i'.e:r TThose livea are spent 
y/ 
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in the ordinary and. more peaceful paths of life. 



Querido Sr. Canpva: 
He leído el artícu o acerca del Jefe y natu­ralmente todo depende de como va a ser publicado, ya oue uara los f1riód.. cos pare�e ser dernasia.do largo., Cr:-eo que será :i.un buen ar­viculo para Revistas 1 y por lo aue se ref1ere a las "mi.1.agrosas escaJ?adas 11 que tuvo el Jefe, J.a ·priméra. fué a principios de entrar al eJérc·to, cuando venía de Huatabampo con 300 hombres reclutados entre sus propios peones y amigos, desarmados, el tren en que v-ie.­jaban fué atacado por indios Yaqu1s. F,l y cuatro otros eran 10¡3unicos armado0 de pistolas, y lograron repulsar el ataque de los Yaqúis después de lo cual el tren siguió su caraino a Hermosill o 

donde fueron debidamente provistos de arruas y municiones .. · El úni­
co q::1e tenía conocimientos �orevios era Eu�enio Martínez, ahora Ge­neral. de Di visión, el que (recordará ustea) mandaba el desfile del día 27 de Sept'embre y el mismo que aceptó la. rendición de Villa 1 estando actua mente con mando en el ,Jo te., hartinez había presta­do antes sus servicios como soldado raso en el ejército naclonal. 

Otra escauada milagrosa fué en la batalla de Trinidad. la segunda con Villa r después de la. de Celaya, cuando fué herid.o '()Or metralla, l?erdiendo su brazo derecho. Cuando reco­bró sus sentidos despué ael )ol-oe, su primer pensamiento fué de que estaba gravemente herido 1 d.e .. oue la.batalla estaba perdido y 
iue caería en nanos de Villa. Cori su mano izquierda tomó su pis­vola y trató de ·oegarse un tiro. 3::1 ahora General J. 1,... Garza 1 le qu1tó a p·stola de sus manos de donde fué llevado nara reci­bir-la r,r·mera curación y de la mesa de operaciones cont·nuó di­rigiendo la batalla. Esta duró cuarenta aías antes de quera ga­nara, con todos las provisiones cortadas por Villa. 

Su desapar·ición de ésta Ciudad disfrazado de garrotero, cuando se habian librado órdenes de Óarranza de tomarlo prisionero. vivo o muerto, es digr].o de anotarse porque de­muestra 61 ·asgo dé ingenio del hombre así como su sangré fría. 
Cuando Carranza abandonó la Capital y entró el General Pablo González con 15,000 hombres, nombrando un gabi­nete y todo 1:ienos Presidente, el Genera. Obregón entró a Tacu aya con tres mil hombres,. donde uuso su Cuartel General y esperó la llegad.a de sus tropas leales: hasta gue el núrnero llegó cerca de diez mil 1 haciendo su entrada a la Ciudad cuando el General Gon­zález tenía la intención de �oroclarnarse Presidente. Con la oferta de Obregón de sostener al Congreso en su elección de Presidente Provision�l 1 de�pués de qu<: se S\l'_L)O la I!1U�rte de Car1:a1:1za, De la Huerta fue elegü1o, y Gonzalez vio frus "'0ao.as sus amb1c1ones. Rentmció a su rango militar nara nuevamente prsentarse como can­didato a lo que tanibien renunció cuando Obregón rehusó su oferta de ayudarle para el próximo periódo presidencial. 

I. P. G.



Cuando Obregón comenzó su c�aña en contra de Vi la en 1915, estaba resue to morir en su intento de aplastar a Villa. Era su urimera oportunidad de enfrentarse con él en el cam�o de batal a. Pero en Celayaz en Abril 6 de 1915, se encon�ró en una situación muy precar a, uorque las fuerzas de Tilla lo habían itiado, y al parecer-sus hombres estaban perdidos. La firme resolución de Obregón debe haberse comunicado a su gente, porque uelearon desesuerádamente. Durante este momento rras cr'­tico y-antes de aue las fuerzas de illa cedieran a la inque­brantable resistencia, Obregón envió el siguiente telet;rama a Carranza: "Tengo el honor de comunicar gue el combate sigue. uestra �aballería ha sido derrotada. En el presente momento (11 p.m.) calcul h ber perdido dos mil hombres. os a0altos del enemigo son terribles. Puede usted estar seguro aue mientras me quede un hombre y·tiros estaré en mi uuesto según Io rlequiere el deber. Con gusto encontraría la r uerte estando peleando por 
m1 .i:1atria en contra del c"rimen. 11 

,q 



La libertad disfrutada ahora por la prensa en léxico, y la acti­tud magnánima del Gobierno �cía sus enemigos políticos, quienes van y vienen según les conviene, son los puntos mas·conspicuos de la Administración Obregonista, porque esa política de ningún modo ha sido la costumbre en ] éx1co. Agregues e a ésto la manera democrática con que el Presidente se pone en contacto con el pue­blo. y puede formarse una buena idea de lo que es el hombre, Al­varó Obregón $ Quien, empezando la vida como muchacho pobre, con oportunidades muy limitaaas de sducación 1 ha sabido adelantar con honor en los negocios, en su carrera militar, nuevamente en el mundo comercial, y finalmente, llegar a,su actual alta posición. 
Alvaro Obregón nació en "Siquisiva 11

1 un �equeño rancho situado en la ribera del Río Mayo, en ei Estado ae Sonora, en Febrero 18, de 1880. Fué el menor de diez y ocho hij.os y cuando tenía tres meses de edad, murió su uadre el Sr. li'rancisco Obregón, dejando a la familia practicamente desamparada. Sus hermanas- 1 1aría, Ce­nobia y Rosa, le dieren su primera instrucción -primaria, uero tem­prano en la vida lp encontraron ser un apto discí-oulo en la gr:an üni versidad de la experiencia. A la edad de trece años emuezó á.,· ganarse la vida, camoiando de una clase de trabajo a otra .... Tenien­do una �spec�al afici9n para la mecánicar trabajo por siete años en los ingenios de azucar de Navolato, S1naloa. Entonces se aven­turó en los negocios mercantiles 1 y con tanto éxito que nronto estuvo en condiciones de comurar una hacienda en las oril as de a población de Huatabampo. ·· 
Se casó a la edad de 23 años, habiendo perdido a su esuosa cuatro años desnués. De esta unión nacieron un hijo, HurJberto, y Refu­gio, una-hija, quienes al regreso de su padre a Nogales, fueron internados en un colegio de Los Angeles� California r encontrándo­se actualmente en una escuela de la Ciua.ad de liféxico. 
Continuó su éxito en los negocios, y cuando comenzó el primer mo­vimiento nolítico en contra de Porfirio Diaz� Obregón se afiliócon el nartido conirario. Al ser derrocado uíaz, Obregón fué e­legido :Presidente r,duniciual de Huatabam-oo, siendo el primer hom­bre de acunar ese -ouesto ... por el voto libre del uueblo·. Cuando Pascua Orozco se ·sublevó en contra de t�adero, Obregón ofreció sus servicios como Maderista, y reclutando un batalián, salió para Chihuahua, donde operaba entonces Orozco. Fué durante esta campaña que Obregón reclbió su bautismo de sangre. Dos veces se enfrentó con los Orozquistas y los derrotó. Habiendo sido sofo­cado el movimiento de Orozco, se le concedió a Obregón su solici­tud de retirarse a la vida privada, pero solamente por un día pu­do disfrutar de la vida ci v·11, porque justamente en ese tiemuo comenzó el movimiento de la decena trágica en contra de ftadero en la Ciudad de México. El manifiesto de Obregón, fechado en Hermo-
. .
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sillo el 5 de �rzo de 19 3, fué a primera protesta pública en contra de esta rebelión. Inmediatamente comenzó su campaña con­tra Huerta, contando con menos de 500 hombres. Durante-esta cam­uaña militar de diecisiete meses recorrió 5,000 millas, aumentan­do sus fuerzas uor donde iba, hasta que finalmente, al llegar a la ciudad de !iéxico a mediados de Agosto, 1914 1 as fuerzas Fede­rales, calculadas en 33.,_,000 hombres con provisiones para tres me­ses se le rindieron. &1 este tiempo Obregón tenía e mando de 35,ÓOO hombres, bastante bien e,qui:pados con material capturado al enemigo. 
Obregón, cuando recibió el mando militar de la Ciudad de lliéxico, .era un� figura arro ante bien formado, bien parecido de tipo Ir landes 1 (aunque é pretende ser .vlaya de uura sangre� y demostro ser un hombre de gran habilidad adrninistrativa. Desuachaba los asuntos de su oficina con eficac.ia, o endo las guejas 1 solicitudes, etc. con gran cuidado, decidiendo rapidamente Ia acción que de­bía tomarse en cada caso.. os personas que lo vieron durante e­sos días agitados y de trabajo, no .pudieron r:rnnos aue admi arlo, persona y oficiabnente. 
Cuando Venustiano Carranza lanzó el _lan de Guadalupe en 1913, Obregón reconoció a Carranza como el rimer Jefe de la Revolución. Cuando los combates entre las fuerzas de Villa. Carranza llegaron a un estado crítico� en la urimavera de 1915 1 O regón salió al frente, llevando a sus ruerzas a norte cerca de Cela a, donde, des­uues de combatir mas de un mes, las fuerzas de vi la fueron com·1ole­tamente derrotadas. Jo fué una victoria fácil, sino una donde a �aciencia y firme resolución ganaron finalmente el día. Fué en Trinidad, practicarnente a fina del combate, que Obregón uerdi6 su brazo derecho en Junio 3 de 1915, siendo alcanzado por un peda­zo de metralla. No obstante su condición seria, continuó dirigien­do la batal1a asta que los Víllistas huyeron, completamente bati­dos. 
Cuando Obregón comenzó su camuaña e·h contra de Villa, contaba uni­camente con 9,000 hombres, pero sigu"ó su victoria con fuerzas que iban creciendo, batiendo a los Vilfistas donde-quiera que los en­contraba� después de haberles administrado la gran der ota en Tri­nidad. Gon mucha justicia fué nombrado General de División, el -rango mas alto en el ejército 1exicano, en Julio 2, 1914, cuando apenas contaba 34 años •. 
Después de su éxito en disuersar las fuerzas Villistas, Obregón fué nombra�o Hnistro de Guerr�,Y Marina,,cuyo pues�o,ocupó hastauoco despues de que la Convenc1on de Queretaro ternnno sus labores c1ando renunció para volver a la vida privada. En este tiemno O­bregón, Cfl)taba con p9cos recursos y teñía q_ue trabajar desdeJ. luego. No se .iJ.:...01a enrequec1do, corno lo hab1an hecho nmchos de los Revoiu-
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cionarios, no obtsante de que sus oportunidades, eran probablemente mejores que l�s de cualui.er otro hombre en esa campaña. 
Durante su participación en la revolución, había cási desaparecido su negocio particular, así que cuando regresó a su antigua caaa, se encontró con 9.ue nada. le quedaba. 1nf,onces se trasladó a Noga.­les, abriendo allí un desuaclio y procediendo a reajustar sus asun­tos. mercantiles. Mu�ir· pronto había establecido un buen negocio mer­cantil. Organizó a os agricultores de los Estados de Sonora y Sinaloa, manejando las inmensas cosechas de esos Estados, exn1. ortán­dolas en su mayoría a los Estados Unidos. Obtuvo buenas uti ida­des para sí mismm y sus asociados, siendo un gran benefactor para los pueblos de os dos Estados en que trabajó. 
Después de su regr:eso a rogales y de haber establecido su. negocio, se casó con la h1ia del Sr. Francisco Tapia, teniendo ahora tres hiiitos de las segt?.ndas nupcias. Es mui devoto a su familia; los hi "os de este matrimonio son Al varo 5 anos, Tu�ayo tres años y Al va 2 años. 
Para el mejoramiento de sus nuevos negocios, el General Obregón hizo varios viajes por los .f;;stados Urudos, visi tanda Washington, haciéndose de buenas ami,stades dondequiera �ue fuera. Estuvo en Washington poco despues de que los ,!Jstados unidos entraran a la guerr� mm d al, y �uvo oportunidad de presenciar las ré.pid�s pre­paraciones de guerra en gran escala. Cuenta con muchos amigos· ent�e 17-uestros oficial es del ejército 1, los. cuales lo aco!!1�añaron a d1st1ntos lugares uor lo aue uudo rormarse una buena 1aea de la magnitud de los traba.íos. J.• Quedó profundamente imuresionadoi no solamente conlas preparaciones de guerra: sino tamb.ien con a grandeza de los Es tactos Unidos, su riqueza y su poderío. 
El Ge�eral Obregqn fué siempre un leal Carranzista. El y �o� o­tros Jefes que apoyaban a Carranza trouezaron con muchas d1c1ful­tades tratando de persuadir al Primer Jefe hiciera lo que ellos consideraban _justo. . Carranza. e:i;-a de convicciones fuertes, y eramuy raro en el carnb1ar sus op1n1ones para ponerse de acuerdo con _os que lo rodeaban. 11iuchas veces había queias amargc1.s so.xe. ésto, hasta tan temorano como nrinciuios de 1914 1 cuando eI movimiento revolucionario no había adquir1do mucha fuerza. Al hacerse Ca­rranza y el movimiento mas poderosos r él hacía menos caso a las sugestiones 1 suplicas de sus principales amigos, y la inflexibi­lidad de esta verdadera figura, rQmo1ó finalmente las barreras de amistad que lo rodeaban. Cuando estas se cayeron, se acaqé e1 po-der de Carranza* 
Es cierto I lw.bland.o generalmente 1 aue se siente gran pesar por Carranza - pesar de que é haya tenido-tah fin - de que se haya acareado tal desastre sobre si mismo, por demostrarse siempre, in-
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diferente a los consejos de sus mejores ainigos� Entre el elemen­to revolucionario de México exist'a un profundo aprecio para Ca­rranza y su trabajo. Tambien es cierto que el General Obregón era uno de sus mas ad1c�os defensores, hasta,�uy poc� tierrrp��ant�s deque su amistad terminara. Para los estua1antes ae la s1vuac16n Mexicana era aparente que el tal rompimii�nto era inevitable. Las uersonas que habían rodeado a Uarranza que lo habían hehcho lo que era (ya que Carranza no era militar., no podían consentir ser ignorados para siempre. No era humano. 
Tal vez Obreg6n era uno de los últimos en comprender que el punto de senaración había llegado. Hechos ínt·mos re atados a la caída del poder de Carranza, prueban aue Obregón astuvo a su lado hasta aue, ciertamente, su sentencia estaba sellada. Obregón debido a su exce ente carrera militar, era reconocido como el hombre mas fuerte! el hombre del día--nubiendo al noder por su propia·popu­laridaa con el elemento mil"tar el ueblo en general, a pesar de que habí otros candidatos para ta honor. 
Si aún se creyera en los mi agros ahora, se diría que la vida del General Qbregón había sido saivena porgue estaba escrito que debía· de ser el Presidente· de �éxico. Su- saivación de la muerte en mu­chas de las batallas en que él participó no se toman en considera­ción, ya qué: tuvo 9t�as milagrosas escapadas que bien podían to-marse como 1nveros1m1les. 
El 13 de Septiembre de 19 4, el General Obregón, con su Estado !..a­yor, salió ae la ciudad de México en un tren especial para a Ciu­dad de Ch· huahua a donde había sido invitado por el Genera Fran­cü-Jco Villa para presencíar las vestividades aue tendrían lugar el 16 de Seutiembre el 4 de Julio lexicano. A su llegada a Chihua­hua el G'eneral Obregón fué recibido suntuosan:ente. Uno de los nú­meros de la celebfación fué la revista de as ·tropas de Villa, es dudoso de gue al!:Una vez el ejército [exicano se haya lucido mas. Cada soldado ucía un unifor�e nuevo, cada caballo estaba en condiciones magníficas y los cañones estabán flamantes presentando su mejor aspecto. La artillería estaba excepciona mente bien re­presentada .. 
Todas éstas ureparaciones habían sido hechas, en gran parte, con el objeto de irrroresionar al General Obregón, ya aue en aquella época Villa y Carranza estaban en desacuerdo. Grandes esfuerzos se ha­cié .. n entonces uara efectuar una conciliación. lno de los objetos de la visita de General Obregón era uara solucionar e conflicto. illa quería le fueran atlas ciertas, conc,eciones y reconocimientos por parte de Carranz • En efecto·, Villa merecía mas de lo que Ca­rranza estaba dispuesto a concederle, y la siuación estaba muy ti-
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rante, ya que la fricci n por algunos meses había sido muy seria. 
Em esa éuoca se encontraban en Chihuahua dos reuresentantes confi­denciales del Gobierno de � ashing,-ton. 1no de e los fué presenta­do al General Villa por la �rimera vez la tarde del 17 de Seutiem­bre, pidiendo éste güe vol 1era mas tarde por no tener en ese mo­men�o tiempo para charlar. 
El representante regresó como se le hab'a indicado, siendo pasado a una sal·ta de esuera donde permanec'ó solo, hasta que el General i la concluyó una-conferencia que tenía. as dos puertas de vi­drio que se encontraban sin cortinas conduciendo de la sala a és .. t� pequeña recámara estaban semi a iertas, descrubiendo inmediata­rnenve este re resentante gtile ·11a estaba conferenciando con el General Obregon. Villa alegaba g�e el General Hill debería de ser . retirado del :i:;stado de Sonora$ Ubregón se oponía a tal cosa. v· -lla insistió y cuando vió que e General Obregón se mantenía firme, montó en uno de sus ataques de cólera. Al mismo tiempo gue la voz encolerizada de Villa se alzó, las dos sillas en las cuaies se en­contraban sent das estas dos uersonas, retrocedieron rechinando, acompaña do las maldiciones de Villa que decía a Obregón lo manda­ría fusilar entonces y alú mismo. Para ·orobar que lo decía de de­veras 1 dictó una órden a uno de sus ayu antes, que se encontraba en la, oficina contig a. ,os hombres de V· 11a siempre estaban gal vani­zados en una acción pronta siempre que éste montaba en cólera, y cuando el eyudante entraba en el· cuarto Villa ordenó se formara in­mediatamente cuadro 
Obregón y Villa paseaban entonces de uno a otro lado, Villa golpean do sobre una mesa cuando la uasaba, ciego de cólera. .. Obregón esta­ba quieto hablando a Villa serenamente. Villa reiteró que pronto demostraría á Obre6ón que él era el que mandaba. Obregon replicó "Por suuuesto, usted me puede fus·lar, rJero eso bo solucionará el problema, al contrar·o, lo empeorará. Sin embargo si mi muerte es ae algún bien para mi patria, -moriré tranquilo". 
Mientras tanto Villa, que se encontraba al fondo de la sala, ha­bía pasado dos veces frente a la puerta de vidrio, cada vez dándo­les la cara, uero el representante confidencial estaba sentado en la sombra y no fué visto. Al voltear Villa por tercera vez. el re-·presentante se levantó, viéndolo Villa. Inmediatamente ceso de proferir palabras obcenas. Debe haber comurendido en ese momento gue no podía llevar a cabo sus intenciones� por que sobre todas Ias cosas deseaba retener las buenas relaciones del Gobierno de Washington. Tan pronto como el representante había logrado éste objeto sali9 de la casa, Y.,subi�nao a un coche gue lo esperaba enfrenle de esta, permanec10 all1 sentado a la vista de Villa� quien lo miraba caaa vez que daba el frente a las ventanas. �ocotiempo después de haberse sentado en el coche, diez y seis soldados 
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doce armados con rifles y cuatro sin nada (eran para remover e cadaver) lleé:i"aron. Estos se formaron a los lados del·:camino que conducía de la reja de enfrente a la casa, permaneciendo ahi en esnera de ordenes. El representante permanecio tambien en su uuésto po espacio de una hora veinticimco minutos, cuando los Generales Raúl -Madero y Eugenio Aguirre Benavídes, del Estado Mayor de Villa, salieron con el General Obregpn. · Al salir de ,la reja eL Repr�sentante cqnfidencial pregunt6 al: General Madero que a donde 1ban1 contestandole que l�evaban al General Qbregon a. su casa. Los üres Generales se aleJaron en un Automob1l s1-guiendolos el Re�resentante q�ien, al llegar a la ca�a del Gene­ral Madero, entro y conferen�io con el General Obregon. . 
El General Obregón sabía perfectamente su peligrosa posic{ón, no obstante, se encontraba perfectamente sereno. Cuando el represen­t�nte le nregunto si habia algo en que pudiera ayudarle, Obreg6ndij o: º'No: no creo que Ud. pueda ayudarme en algo. Esve homore· 1 ( Villa) ba perdido la cabeza cor1pletamente. y probablemente me. fu­silará". , Sin e!!lbargo .,_. el Renresentan.:te regreso a ·1a ·casa, de Vi: lla que el tamb1en bao1a hecho su cuartel General, y .hablo con eI. Los _ojos de Villa despedían rayos·de colera y estaba s-µmamente ex­i tado, ·oero el Representante entro como si nada hubiese ·oasado � .:­diciendo que rabia llegado a la h ra ºndicada_y pre�en�iado toao desde la sala contigua., Habl6 gavemente a V1l_a, 1nd1candole lo profundamente que el Gobiern·o de los Esta.dos Unidos estaba intere­sa.do en g_ue la diferencia entre Carranza y él guedara amigablemen­té arreglada con el obj�to de aue la paz en Mexico pronto quedara restablecida. Informó a Villa que el Gobierno de los "WiPt,ado� Uni­dos deseaba sinceramente que nada ocurriera que fuera a prolongar la contienda, indicandole tambien que Obregón era su huesped y de­bería usar todas las fuerzas bajo su mando para protegerle en vez · de amenazarle. Villa aun �staba encolerizado, pero a medida guela conversación se ro-longal;a este se calmaba, finalmente diciendogue dejaría a Obregon regresar a la Ciudad de México, via el Paso.El representc.nte hablo más todavia, tratando de persuadirle queque perrni tiera a Obregon hiciera su viaje directamente de maneraque pudiera llegar a la Capital en dos dias, en vez de que le to­mara se�anas uor· el otro camino. Una pronta solución de las difi­cultades que existían entre Carranza y Villa era para beneficio deMéxico y seria de sumo agrado para el Gobierno de.Washington.Villa se mantuvo firme en su r"esolución de enviar a Obregón viaEl Paso.
ftuy tem¡irano la mañana siguiente el tren se encontraba listo con­direccion hacia el Paso, pero en el último momento, dos de las ma­nos slerec:ba� de yi 1 �a 1 },.igu�l Dias Lombardo. y. el Dr. Miguel Sil vaa quienes Villa dec1d10 enviar como sus com1s1onados a Carranza,a19arecieron en la r,stacion.
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Entonces se agrego una maqui.na al otro extremo del tren c-omenzando su rnarcha hacía el sur. gin embargo, Carranza recibio informes de que Vill. ha.bía fusilado a Obregón ,. y cuando e tren llegó a Leon Carranz& había librado ya ordenes ae oue se cortarán \odas las vías de ComuJlicación con el territorio de Villa. Esto indigno sobre ma nera a Villa quien i:runediatrunente ordeno que se regresara el tren que conducia a Obregón, la segunda mañana despues ae estos aconte­cimientos Obregón y sus acompañantes volvieron a aparecer en Chi­huahua. Estos esperaban con toda seguridad ser fusilados 1 ya.aue el campamento de villa se encontraba en gra� actividad �reu1arando­se las fuerzas rapidamente para mobilizarse en contra :·.a.e os Ca­rrancist.as. De hecho,- algunas ya habían salido. Uno de los queacompañaban entonces al Gral. Obregón se acerco al Ag�nte confiden­cial y, como amigo, le suplico le hicíera un favor, cuando le.con­testo afirrnati varDente 1 este le entregó cuarenta y cinco mil �esos Méxicanos en billetes de Banco con la demanda de aue e�tos rueran depositados en los Estados UniJos a favor del Gobiirno de Carranza en caso de que los 01:regonistas fuesen ejecutados. 
Pero nuevamente· se le perri1i tio a Obregón partir uara el Sur. Algu­nos de los trenes rnil i tares de Villa habían sal id.o ya para el mismo rumbo. Um,,s / cuantas horas antes de aue el tren de Obregón saliera esa noche, el Gral ,. _ iJia teo Almanza saii6 al mando de un tren militar y parece que lleyaba. instrucciones verbales �e Vil�a.para det�ner \ 
al tren de Obregon cuando este alcanzara al t,ren M1l 1 tar aue, 1 ba mas despacio, y de fusilar a Obregón. Pero 1 como generaln1ente es el caso, cuando las tropas salen de su cuarte gqneral, Dara una camua.ña, había tastan-te ·entusiasn:o y borracheras. A esto se debe probablemente que cuando el tr :n de Obregón alcanzo al de Almanza en una pegueñ� estación 1 este estaba dormido v como a.nadie habia revelado las ordenes secretas que había recib1do de Villa, se le per-mitio el paso al·tren de Obregón .. La maf.ana siguiente, 9,l darse cuenta Almanza de 1 o aue había ocurrido· la n che anterior·:,: estaba asustado y furioso� Villa rara vez uasaba desapercibido el hecho de que alguna de .sus ordenes dejara ct.e ser cumplida. Almanza te ... 1 egraf ió inmediatamente a Villa y este último des·de luego invió instrucciones telegraficas a sus comandantes militares a lo largo de la linea para que detuviesen el tren aue conducia a Obregón hasta que Alrnanza lle -·ara. Jos fines de �Villa habían sido ctescu­b�ertos. Ya no exist1a ningun secreto acerca de sus intenciones contra Obregón. Los illistas síerrrore han uretendido de que Villa estala ampliamente justificado para�expedir-estas últimas ordenes. 
�l hono� �e detener al tren de Obry�Ón le corrernpondi9 a un Coman­uante m1l�tar en una pequeña estac1on cerca,de Co�ral1tos, a unas cuantas m11las del Norte de Torreon. Obtegon sabia lo que esto signific�ta y ll�1ándo � su esta10 ]Jayor les manife�to que Villasolo tenia malas 1ntenc1ones hacia· el y de que abanaonaran el tren 
procurando salvarse de la mejor manera que pudieran. 

' l 
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El General Francisco Serrano, actualmente Sub-Secretario de Guerra era entonces la mano derecha del General Obregón. Acompañaban tarn bien a 01:regón dos .Americanos, ambos periodistas, vno de apellido Byron,S. Butcher y el otro Wr1gtJt�. Todos decidieron quedarse con obregon y acompañarle hasta lo ultimo. 
Pero la estrella ie Obregón aún no se había opacado. Los genera­les Raúl Madero e Isable Robles se encontraban entonces en Torreon y cuaz1do el desuachador del tren ahii les informó de las ordenesque Villa habia-e�edido en toda la inea, inmediatamente se pree­cuparon gnmdemente uor que comprendían oue si Obregón encontrare su muerte de esta manera, su causa sería seriamente-perjudicada. Desde luego telegrafiaron al comandante militar en Corralitos pa­ra gue -oerrnitiera que el tren conduciendo a Obregón quedará en li­bertad ae continuar su marcha, este comandante ne opuso pero como los dos Generales tenian mas ipando que el al repet·1r !ª orden asegurandole que· ellos se hac1an resnonsa1les ante Vilia: las aca­to. Cuando apenas se distinguía el humo del tren en que venía el Gener� Almanza, a una distancia de la Estación de un poco mas de una milla el tren de Obregón salia para el Sur hacía a Torrean en comple a seguíidad.. A su llegada a· este .lu.,ar fué despacnado in­mediatamente uara el Sur y una vez mas Obregon estaba en salvo llegando a ver eJ. día cuando 'l, al mando de tropas, se enfrento contra las que comandaba Villa a quienes derrotó. 
Experiencias de esta 1aturaleza a ejercitar la mentalidad a una 
�rofundidad y agudeza jam1ls conmrendida 11or aquellos que nunca nan �e�ido estas �?en�uras, y en �uy cor-e.as horas imparte tal en­tendimiento ·sab1dur1a aue los a.nos de edad nunca traen a los hombres cuyas vidas son gastadas en los car1inos ordinarios y pa­cíficos de la vida. 



80TH IN THE HEART OF CITY 

APARTMENTS ANO ROOMS 
WITH OR WITHOUT 

KITCH EN 

MÉXICO\ D. F. 
Abril 15 de 1924. 

Muy estimado amigo y Jefe: 
Ya telegrafié comunicándole á Blas que quedaban aceptadas las dos ofertas de terreno que hizo por mi conducto. 

Unmil quinientas hectáreas en el predio de Saratajoa, colin­
dando con Huicho (El Cubilete) (Son 1250) á diez pesos la 
hectara y 115 dentro de los terrenos de Guasave. Estas 
Últimas alderredor de 32.oo la hectara. Le he dicho que 
en breve será.n situados los fondos para cubrir el importe 
de estos terrenos y considero conveniente que se haga la, 
situación de $20,000.oo por conducto de nuestra oficina en 
Navojoa, primero, para que quede la constancia de los pagos que se le hagan á Valenzuela y segundo, porque y� nos estarnos 
ocupando de desmontar y acondicionar las ciento y pico hec­
tareas de Guasave, y es para ese objeto, que deseo destinar 
los fondos del excedente de lo que importa la compra de los 
terrenos en cuestión. 

Ya he escrito á Araiza poniéndolo en antecedentes sobre esta operación, asi es que -te supihico avisarle ,á, Navoj oa, 
cuando 1nandes hacer la situación, pues yo no llegaré á Navoj oa 
hasta los ú¡timos dias de este mes ó los primeros de mayo pmo. 

Tu amigo y servidor, 

e����
, 
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